EASTERN BAY OYSTER COALITION WORKGROUP

Pre-Meeting Questionnaire Summary of Responses

DESIGNED AND COMPILED BY OYSTER RECOVERY PARTNERSHIP & FACILITATED SOLUTIONS, LLC





Table of Contents

Summary of Key Survey Results	3
I. Introduction	6
A. OCW Perspectives	6
II. OCW Outcomes	7
	-
A. Most important successful outcomes of the OCW	/
B. what does successful restoration and management in Eastern Bay look like?	8
C. OCW Draft Goal Statement	9
III. LOOKING Back	11
IV. Looking Around	13
A. Tailwinds	13
B. Headwinds	14
C. Trends	15
D. Key Strategic Issues & Critical Challenges	17
1. The role of oysters in a healthy Eastern Bay system	17
2. Oyster habitat characteristics and restoration siting	18
3. Siting of aquaculture leases and public fishery replenishment activities	18
4. Oyster substrate and cultch	19
5. Water quality and quantity	20
6. Land use, development, and tourism impacts on the fishery and Eastern Bay system	21
7. Lack of holistic, sustainable Eastern Bay management plan informed by science	21
8. Status of Eastern Bay public oyster fishery management and strategy	22
9. Emergence of aquaculture	23
10. Oysters and Chesapeake Bay in decline	24
11. Public awareness	24
12. Current process for building consensus on oyster restoration and management in Eastern Bay	25
13. Availability of resources	26
14. Recreation and tourism in Eastern Bay	26
15. Other issues	27
V. Looking Forward	27
A. Undesirable Future	27
B. Successful Future	29
C. Vision Themes	30
VI. Additional Information	31

Summary of Key Survey Results

Summary of Benefits that Oysters and Oyster Habitat Provide

- 1. Ecosystem benefits of providing habitat, filtration, protection of coastal areas, and serving as a keystone species to improve the broader Eastern Bay ecosystem
- 2. Economic benefits to the seafood industry, recreational fishing, and as a food source
- 3. Educational and cultural role

Summary of Successful Workgroup Process Outcomes

- 1. Consensus and a shared goal(s) for oyster habitat and production in Eastern Bay
- 2. A focused, realistic, equitable, united, and executable plan for oyster habitat and production in Eastern Bay
- 3. Strategies to create a self-sustained and enhanced oyster population in Eastern Bay

Summary of What Successful Restoration and Management Would Look Like in Eastern Bay

- 1. A self-sustained, resilient, and healthy oyster population
- 2. Maximized ecosystem services associated with oyster habitat
- 3. Healthy and well-managed harvest
- 4. Increased oyster aquaculture production and the expansion of aquaculture
- 5. Continued and expanded oyster restoration and replenishment activities
- 6. Improved communication and cohesion among stakeholders
- 7. Science-based and adaptive approach to decision making and management that would allow for all of the above

Tailwinds – Factors Enhancing the Health and Success of Eastern Bay

- 1. Favorable historic, geological, geographic, and recent environmental conditions
- 2. Recent focus on and support for oyster restoration and replenishment activities in Eastern Bay
- 3. Maintenance of harvest areas
- 4. Management tools and initiatives
- 5. Improved communication and changes in perception

Headwinds – Factors Impeding the Health and Success of Eastern Bay

- 1. Lack of oyster habitat and broodstock to support sustainable population
- 2. Conditions, fisheries management, and activities in Eastern Bay are limiting the recovery of oysters, harvest, and the ability to properly manage them
- 3. Continued development in watershed continues to degrade water quality
- 4. Collaboration and communication continues to be challenging

Trends Affecting Eastern Bay

- 1. Political support is generally in favor of oysters, but is challenging to navigate
- 2. Overdevelopment in watershed continues

- 3. Economy and funding are currently favorable for oyster production. However, funding is competitive, not guaranteed, not always well spent, and gaps remain
- 4. Increased oyster activities and management initiatives focused on Eastern Bay
- 5. Current environmental conditions and impacts from climate change will have variable impacts on oyster production and habitat value
- 6. Limited availability of substate (i.e., shell) due to competing substrate needs
- 7. Loss of widespread knowledge of oyster culture in Eastern Bay continues

Summary of Issues and Options the Workgroup Should Explore

- 1. Dynamics, interacting benefits, and conflicts between oyster management zones and activities in Eastern Bay
- 2. Shell resource dynamics and needs options for recovering, retaining, cost, sources, and deployment, shell budget for Eastern Bay
- 3. Location of and rationale for current management boundaries delineating public fishing grounds, sanctuaries, and aquaculture. Considerations for changing these and rationale
- 4. Equitable distribution of space, resources, and funding among oyster stakeholder groups and equitable strategies to sustain oyster production
- 5. Optimize siting of public fishery replenishment, sanctuary restoration, and aquaculture leasing. What characteristics are used to determine oyster habitat worthy of repletion activities?
- 6. Land use impacts on watershed, water quality, and oysters
- 7. Unified oyster population and harvest goals for Eastern Bay
- 8. Define key groups in Eastern Bay watershed
- 9. Alternate materials allowable substrates, sources, infrastructure to deploy, permitting, etc.
- 10. Existing efforts in Eastern Bay and groups conducting these oyster plantings, monitoring, education, public engagement
- 11. Information on management and priorities from DNR, QA and Talbot Counties for Eastern Bay water quality, oysters, other fisheries/habitats, land use, recreation and tourism
- 12. Strategies to engage public
- 13. Explore management plans/efforts in other regions of Chesapeake Bay, and investigate components from those that may be applicable to Eastern Bay
- 14. Consequences of not having a plan, how to maintain the plan, who owns and implements the plan
- 15. How to design a collaborative structure that can be adaptive based on user input
- 16. Define goals, objectives, and metrics to achieve measurable results
- 17. Current funding and workforce development goals, needs, and plans to support comprehensive restoration and growth of oyster industry in Eastern Bay is current framework and funding enough?

Undesirable Future for Eastern Bay in 2033

- 1. A decline in or elimination of the oyster population
- 2. A lack of momentum, interest, and resources available for oyster restoration and production
- 3. Poor resource management and planning

Summary of Vision of Success Themes

- 1. Self-sustained oyster population
- 2. Sustained and booming harvest from fishery and aquaculture

- 3. Focused, impactful, sustainable resource management
- 4. Economic bounty and tourism
- 5. Cultural significance
- 6. Careful planning, relying on science and expertise, collaboration
- 7. Generous dedicated funding
- 8. Ecosystem benefits and resilience
- 9. A healthy ecosystem
- 10. Improved oyster production and habitat
- 11. Engaged and supportive stakeholders, culture, and economy

Headlines 2033 – Baltimore Sun & Watermen's Gazette

- 1. Eastern Bay Revival: A Triumph in Environmental Restoration and Sustainable Management
- 2. Eastern Bay Shows a Heartbeat
- 3. A return to the 60's

4. 10 years later: We have more oysters in Eastern Bay because we figured out how to work together

- 5. Oyster harvest levels in Eastern Bay not seen in 30 years are sustained for fifth year in a row
- 6. Recreational fishing tournament held in Eastern Bay a huge success thanks to restored oyster habitat
- 7. Today the State of Maryland and the Maryland Department of Natural Resources are happy to report that the Eastern Bay on Maryland's Eastern Shore is no longer on the States endangered list
- 8. Eastern Bay Oysters are Making a Splash
- 9. The Remarkable Oysters of Eastern Bay
- 10. Good planning and Mother Nature returns Eastern Bay to thriving
- 11. Localized oyster harvest dominated by spat from Eastern Bay is setting records not seen since the fifties

I. Introduction

The Oyster Coalition Workgroup (OCW) was convened by the Oyster Recovery Partnership (ORP) to develop consensus recommendations for oyster policies, management, and restoration/replenishment activities that improve oyster production and the ecological and ecosystem services from oyster habitat restoration, and meet the needs of industry, citizen, NGOs, and government stakeholders in Eastern Bay and its tributaries.

This questionnaire was designed to solicit an initial set of key issues and questions from stakeholders of the Oyster Coalition Workgroup in advance of the Organizational Meeting scheduled for February 2–3, 2024. In addition to this summary, we have incorporated OCW member responses into the organizational meeting agenda packet.

A. OCW Perspectives

All 17 OCW members completed the pre-meeting questionnaire. Several stakeholder perspectives were represented in the responses. All individuals identified with multiple perspectives.

Perspective	Count Individuals can represent more than one perspective
Oyster fishery/watermen	11
Seafood buyers/processors	3
Aquaculture	6
Non-profit environmental organizations	5
Oyster restoration	10
Recreational fishing interests	4
Biologist/scientist	3
Fishery managers	2
Federal, State, or Local government	4
Citizen interested in Chesapeake Bay health	4
Other	1 (clammer)

Workgroup members were also asked to provide their perspectives about the benefits that oysters and oyster habitat provide in Eastern Bay. The following three key benefits were described:

- 1. <u>Ecosystem benefits</u> of providing habitat, filtration, protection of coastal areas, and serving as a keystone species to improve the broader Eastern Bay ecosystem
- 2. Economic benefits to the seafood industry, recreational fishing, and as a food source
- 3. <u>Educational and cultural</u> role

Overarching Topic	ummary of	Details Provided by OCW Members
1. Ecosystem Benefits	Habitat –	enhance biodiversity, provide structure and habitat for
	other spe habitat),	ccies (in a system dominated by low relief sand and mud food for other species (fish, crabs, rays), significantly
	supports	secondary productivity
	Filtration	- filter algae, sediment, pollutants, and nutrients from
	water (ar	nd sequester into tissue and shell), clean water

	 Decrease erosion/provide some protection to coastal areas, protection Keystone species – Bay ecosystem and health begins with oysters. Oysters filter water. Clean water leads to abundance of seagrasses, sea worms, crabs, fish nurseries, which leads to larger fish and a balanced ecosystem
2. Economic Benefits, Food Source	 Support watermen, processors, dealers, restaurants Commercial harvest and aquaculture provide income for individuals and businesses, support third party suppliers throughout the country Provide downstream economic impacts by facilitating food production in coastal communities As a habitat, oysters support commercially and recreationally important marine resources No-input protein source Maryland is known for safe and wholesome shellfish
3. Educational and Cultural Role	 Symbol for Bay health or sickness Excellent tool for demonstrating importance of water quality Useful to raise awareness for Bay clean-up efforts Sustain watermen and seafood culture Provide downstream cultural impacts by facilitating socialization in coastal communities

II. OCW Outcomes

Members were asked to reflect on outcomes of the OCW process and their broader goals for successful oyster restoration and management in Eastern Bay.

A. Most important successful outcomes of the OCW

Workgroup members indicated that the most successful outcomes of the OCW process would be:

- 1. Consensus and a shared goal(s) for oyster habitat and production in Eastern Bay
- 2. A focused, realistic, equitable, united, and executable plan for oyster habitat and production in Eastern Bay
- 3. Strategies to create a self-sustained and enhanced oyster population in Eastern Bay

Overarching Topic	Summary of Details Provided by OCW Members
1. Consensus	 Shared understanding of opportunities and a shared goal Consensus that restored oyster sanctuary system helps water quality and viability of public fishery
2. Focused, Realistic, Equitable, United, and	 Plan is based on previous knowledge and experiences Plan improves the quality of Eastern Bay while protecting the summary basits as
Executable Plan	current heritage

	 Plan is inclusive of all stakeholders, generated by stakeholders, and supported by all Plan leaves room for innovation, is adaptive Uses the tools and resources available – including oyster BMPs Involves waterman and NGOs working together to achieve targets generated by the OCW
3. Strategies to Create a Self- sustained and Enhanced Oyster Population	 Healthy and productive oyster sanctuaries Identifying areas to plant spat-on-shell (including public oyster bars) Allowing and budgeting for bar cleaning

B. What does successful restoration and management in Eastern Bay look like?

Workgroup members indicated that successful restoration and management in Eastern Bay would include the following elements:

- 1. A self-sustained, resilient, and healthy oyster population
- 2. Maximized ecosystem services associated with oyster habitat
- 3. Healthy and well-managed harvest
- 4. Increased oyster aquaculture production and the expansion of aquaculture
- 5. Continued and expanded oyster restoration and replenishment activities
- 6. Improved communication and cohesion among stakeholders
- 7. Science-based and adaptive approach to decision making and management that would allow for the above

Overarching Topic	Summary of Details Provided by OCW Members
1. Self-sustained, Resilient,	 Improved, healthy, prolific natural spat set
Healthy Oyster Population	• Oyster population resilience (climate change and extreme weather)
	 Thriving and expanding oyster population in sanctuaries
	• An oyster population that can sustain itself under some level of
	exploitation and continue to provide measurable water filtration
	capacity and valuable habitat to facilitate secondary productivity
2. Maximized Ecosystem	 Maximized associated ecosystem services
Services	 Everyone benefitting from restoration of Eastern Bay
	• An oyster population that can sustain itself under some level of
	exploitation and continue to provide measurable water filtration
	capacity and valuable habitat to facilitate secondary productivity
3. Healthy and Well-	• Healthy and well-managed harvest from aquaculture and wild
managed Harvest	harvest areas, sustained and managed at a level to maximize yields
	and price
	More substrate, more harvest
	• Improved harvest (as good as in the 80s) with reef created from
	dredged shell
	• An oyster population that can sustain itself under some level of
	exploitation and continue to provide measurable water filtration
	capacity and valuable habitat to facilitate secondary productivity

4. Increased Oyster	• Increased oyster aquaculture production from increases in number
Aquaculture Production	of leases, more bottom leases and farming of bottom
and Expansion of	• Add aquaculture where there is no wild harvesting and away from
Aquaculture	historic oyster bottom
5. Continued or Expanded	 More plantings, increased oyster shell and habitat
Restoration/Replenishment	 More plantings in fishery areas results in increased harvest
Activities	• More plantings in sanctuaries results in increased population and
	broodstock
	• Combined plantings results in increased spat set, harvest, and
	broodstock in non-planted areas
	• Planting and establishment of broodstock specifically using diploid
	oysters (across sanctuary, wild harvest, and aquaculture areas)
	Restoring public fishery
	Planting seed
	Bar cleaning
	Reef created from dredged shell
6. Improved	• Everyone being on the same page and communicating better, from
Communication and	waterman groups to NGOs
Cohesion	• Having a cohesive working group making decisions based on science
	as well as local water knowledge and common sense
	• Create a centralized database that is accessible to the public to see
	where reefs are located
7. Adaptive Management	 Science-based approach to decision making and management
and Updates to	• Combination of many efforts and leveraging mixture of approaches
Management	and use in various areas
	• Wild harvesting on historic oyster bottom and sanctuaries in
	rivers/tributaries
	 Expand current and develop new sanctuary/seed areas
	Redefine harvest bars and expand aquaculture – both would benefit
	wild fishery
	More restrictions on oyster dredging
	• Diversification of protections and access to oysters over time and in
	space – protect some oysters from exploitation, allow other oysters
	to be exploited, changing protections in space and time, provide for
	alternative oyster production pathways that are driven by external
	sources (e.g., through aquaculture techniques and technologies)

C. OCW Draft Goal Statement

<u>Draft Goal Statement</u> – The goals of the Oyster Coalition Workgroup are to (1) develop a package of consensus recommendations informed by the best available science, data, and stakeholders' experiences for the management and restoration of oysters in Eastern Bay, Maryland, and (2) to ensure there is a reliable mechanism and process for the monitoring, funding, and implementation of the Sustainable Oyster Restoration and Management Plan for Eastern Bay, Maryland. The Workgroup process will be informed by the best available science and shared stakeholder values, resulting in the economically and ecologically sustainable long-term maintenance and growth of oyster production in Eastern Bay and its tributaries.

Average	4= Acceptable	3= Minor	2= Major	1= Not	No Response
Rating		Reservations	Reservations	Acceptable	
3.8	9	3			5
Comments or Revisions	 Change to production Keep it simp Shared prior #1. Decisions sh Continued f This is an all Identifying f 	"long-term ma in Eastern Bay and ole rities/goals need to nould be based on s unding for implem -encompassing sta unding mechanism	intenance and grow its tributaries." b happen before reco science and local kno entation of projects/a tement of the group' ns for any developed	vth of oyster r mmendations. Th wledge awareness is critic s activities plan is a critical c	estoration and his could be goal cal omponent

III. Looking Back

Workgroup members were asked to reflect on key milestones, people, actions, and time periods that have made a difference (for better or worse) for (1) the Eastern Bay system and (2) oyster production and habitat in Eastern Bay. Many of the responses overlapped so they have been grouped together here. Member responses are grouped by overarching topics.

Overarching topic	Positive	Negative
Infrastructure/ Development	 Adding public sewer to replace aging septic systems and improve water quality 	 Conowingo Dam privately operated for profit Waterfront development on Kent Island and lower QA County QA and Talbot County gov. – detrimental for promoting or allowing significant development to occur in Eastern Bay watershed (1980s-present) Increased population on Eastern Bay has increased pressure on natural resources (without added pressures of sea level rise, local subsidence, runoff)
Relationships, Funding, Politics	 Funding to Horn Point Laboratory & oyster hatchery has increased Gov Erlich seemed to have an interest in oysters along with DNR Secretary Franks – this was short-lived Getting harvest and seafood industry/restaurants back up and running after COVID More interest in oysters has been positive for leaseholders and restoration work in general 	 Discord within DNR and impacts on progress and employees – Over the years DNR has squelched good employees in the oyster division because they didn't want to hear that restoration reefs were not performing or that power dredging wouldn't kill everything Relationships between DNR, NGOs, and watermen seemingly weren't always pleasant COVID halted production in seafood industry and support for Maryland oyster market
Fishery Regulations & Restoration Activities	 Activities & regulations – Beginning of seed and shell repletion program (1960s) – on harvest bars and later sanctuaries Dredge shell used to create reefs that produced billions of oysters (1960-2006) 	 Activities & regulations – Introduction of oyster power dredge (1800s) Introduction of commercial hydraulic clam dredge (1900s) Introduction of commercial diving for oysters (1980s)

	 Introduction of commercial diving for oysters (1980s) Dive and hand tong boundaries established Dredging with open bags to turn shell over (2000s) Planting shell on leased bottom (2000s) Establishment of oyster sanctuaries by DNR Planting of spat on shell Revamping aquaculture in Maryland (2010) DNR focused management on Eastern Bay (2019) Poplar Island Reclamation project TNC SOAR program Groups – MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC – beneficial for focusing attention and dedicating resources to restoring EB oyster 	 The removal of 750,000 bushels of shell and seed under repletion program that were never replaced (2000s) End of dredged shell program (2000s) Revamping aquaculture in Maryland (2010) Dive and hand tong boundaries established When dive bottom was taken and given to dredgers Diving was not the best harvest practice for eastern Bay Groups – DNR – detrimental to EB by removing seed and shell under repletion program
Natural Processes/Ecology	 on OAC – beneficial for focusing attention and dedicating resources to restoring EB oyster habitat (2022) Local NGOs – beneficial for promoting health of EB ecosystem Harris Seafood attempts for adding shell and spat in Eastern Bay and other areas Natural spat sets (1997, 2003, 2009) Good water quality High production of oysters in 1970s and 80s until December 2015 	 Prevalence of oyster disease – Dermo and MSX (1970s, 80s) Hurricane Agnes (1972)
	Dermo and MSX	 Storm runoff and siltation (1990s) Drought (1999-2002) Dermo and MSX wipe out oysters in Eastern Bay (2002) Hurricane Isabel (2003) brought heavy sedimentation to Eastern Bay and killed everything Freshets (2011, 2019) Water quality

IV. Looking Around

Workgroup members were asked to reflect on key factors that are currently enhancing, impeding, or otherwise impacting oyster production and habitat in Eastern Bay.

A. Tailwinds

Factors that Workgroup members felt are enhancing oyster production and habitat in Eastern Bay:

- 1. Favorable historic, geological, geographic, and recent environmental conditions
- 2. Recent focus on and support for oyster restoration and replenishment activities in Eastern Bay
- 3. Maintenance of harvest areas
- 4. Management tools and initiatives
- 5. Improved communication and changes in perception

 1. Favorable Environmental Conditions Low rainfall supporting ideal salinity ranges, resulting in increased spat sets and marketability of oysters More balanced weather – the last few winters were mild and no droughts No tropical storms, excessive rainfall flushing into Eastern Bay No Ohio valley/PA storms requiring the opening of flood gates at the Conowingo Dam Historic abundance of oysters in this region Small watershed and shoreline morphology limits external inputs to system (from land and larger Chesapeake Bay – e.g., freshwater discharge from Conowingo Dam) Proximity to infrastructure to move oyster product (Rt. 50/301) and tourist destination (Kent Island) increases demand for local oysters Oyster Restoration and Replenishment Activities MDNR setting aside portions of Eastern Bay as sanctuaries Political support for restoration Additional interest and funding for Eastern Bay Continued support for oyster restoration through sanctuaries, repletion program for public fishery, and support of aquaculture production in EB and other areas within MD portion of Bay Ongoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areas MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
 Conditions increased spat sets and marketability of oysters More balanced weather – the last few winters were mild and no droughts No tropical storms, excessive rainfall flushing into Eastern Bay No Ohio valley/PA storms requiring the opening of flood gates at the Conowingo Dam Historic abundance of oysters in this region Small watershed and shoreline morphology limits external inputs to system (from land and larger Chesapeake Bay – e.g., freshwater discharge from Conowingo Dam) Proximity to infrastructure to move oyster product (Rt. 50/301) and tourist destination (Kent Island) increases demand for local oysters Oyster Restoration and Replenishment Activities MDNR setting aside portions of Eastern Bay as sanctuaries Political support for restoration Additional interest and funding for Eastern Bay Continued support for oyster restoration through sanctuaries, repletion program for public fishery, and support of aquaculture production in EB and other areas within MD portion of Bay Ongoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areas MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
 More balanced weather – the last few winters were mild and no droughts No tropical storms, excessive rainfall flushing into Eastern Bay No Ohio valley/PA storms requiring the opening of flood gates at the Conowingo Dam Historic abundance of oysters in this region Small watershed and shoreline morphology limits external inputs to system (from land and larger Chesapeake Bay – e.g., freshwater discharge from Conowingo Dam) Proximity to infrastructure to move oyster product (Rt. 50/301) and tourist destination (Kent Island) increases demand for local oysters Oyster Restoration and Replenishment Activities MDNR setting aside portions of Eastern Bay as sanctuaries. Political support for restoration Additional interest and funding for Eastern Bay Continued support for oyster restoration through sanctuaries, repletion program for public fishery, and support of aquaculture production in EB and other areas within MD portion of Bay Ongoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areas MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
 droughts No tropical storms, excessive rainfall flushing into Eastern Bay No Ohio valley/PA storms requiring the opening of flood gates at the Conowingo Dam Historic abundance of oysters in this region Small watershed and shoreline morphology limits external inputs to system (from land and larger Chesapeake Bay – e.g., freshwater discharge from Conowingo Dam) Proximity to infrastructure to move oyster product (Rt. 50/301) and tourist destination (Kent Island) increases demand for local oysters Oyster Restoration and Replenishment Activities MDNR setting aside portions of Eastern Bay as sanctuaries Political support for restoration Additional interest and funding for Eastern Bay Continued support for oyster restoration through sanctuaries, repletion program for public fishery, and support of aquaculture production in EB and other areas within MD portion of Bay Ongoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areas MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
 No tropical storms, excessive rainfall flushing into Eastern Bay No Ohio valley/PA storms requiring the opening of flood gates at the Conowingo Dam Historic abundance of oysters in this region Small watershed and shoreline morphology limits external inputs to system (from land and larger Chesapeake Bay – e.g., freshwater discharge from Conowingo Dam) Proximity to infrastructure to move oyster product (Rt. 50/301) and tourist destination (Kent Island) increases demand for local oysters Oyster Restoration and Replenishment Activities MDNR setting aside portions of Eastern Bay as sanctuaries Political support for restoration Additional interest and funding for Eastern Bay Continued support for oyster restoration through sanctuaries, repletion program for public fishery, and support of aquaculture production in EB and other areas within MD portion of Bay Ongoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areas MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
 No Ohio valley/PA storms requiring the opening of flood gates at the Conowingo Dam Historic abundance of oysters in this region Small watershed and shoreline morphology limits external inputs to system (from land and larger Chesapeake Bay – e.g., freshwater discharge from Conowingo Dam) Proximity to infrastructure to move oyster product (Rt. 50/301) and tourist destination (Kent Island) increases demand for local oysters 2. Oyster Restoration and Replenishment Activities MDNR setting aside portions of Eastern Bay as sanctuaries Political support for restoration Additional interest and funding for Eastern Bay Continued support for oyster restoration through sanctuaries, repletion program for public fishery, and support of aquaculture production in EB and other areas within MD portion of Bay Ongoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areas MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
 at the Conowingo Dam Historic abundance of oysters in this region Small watershed and shoreline morphology limits external inputs to system (from land and larger Chesapeake Bay – e.g., freshwater discharge from Conowingo Dam) Proximity to infrastructure to move oyster product (Rt. 50/301) and tourist destination (Kent Island) increases demand for local oysters 2. Oyster Restoration and Replenishment Activities MDNR setting aside portions of Eastern Bay as sanctuaries Political support for restoration Additional interest and funding for Eastern Bay Continued support for oyster restoration through sanctuaries, repletion program for public fishery, and support of aquaculture production in EB and other areas within MD portion of Bay Ongoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areas MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
 Historic abundance of oysters in this region Small watershed and shoreline morphology limits external inputs to system (from land and larger Chesapeake Bay – e.g., freshwater discharge from Conowingo Dam) Proximity to infrastructure to move oyster product (Rt. 50/301) and tourist destination (Kent Island) increases demand for local oysters Oyster Restoration and Replenishment Activities MDNR setting aside portions of Eastern Bay as sanctuaries Political support for restoration Additional interest and funding for Eastern Bay Continued support for oyster restoration through sanctuaries, repletion program for public fishery, and support of aquaculture production in EB and other areas within MD portion of Bay Ongoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areas MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
 Small watershed and shoreline morphology limits external inputs to system (from land and larger Chesapeake Bay – e.g., freshwater discharge from Conowingo Dam) Proximity to infrastructure to move oyster product (Rt. 50/301) and tourist destination (Kent Island) increases demand for local oysters Oyster Restoration and Replenishment Activities MDNR setting aside portions of Eastern Bay as sanctuaries Political support for restoration Additional interest and funding for Eastern Bay Continued support for oyster restoration through sanctuaries, repletion program for public fishery, and support of aquaculture production in EB and other areas within MD portion of Bay Ongoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areas MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
 inputs to system (from land and larger Chesapeake Bay – e.g., freshwater discharge from Conowingo Dam) Proximity to infrastructure to move oyster product (Rt. 50/301) and tourist destination (Kent Island) increases demand for local oysters Oyster Restoration and Replenishment Activities MDNR setting aside portions of Eastern Bay as sanctuaries Political support for restoration Additional interest and funding for Eastern Bay Continued support for oyster restoration through sanctuaries, repletion program for public fishery, and support of aquaculture production in EB and other areas within MD portion of Bay Ongoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areas MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
 freshwater discharge from Conowingo Dam) Proximity to infrastructure to move oyster product (Rt. 50/301) and tourist destination (Kent Island) increases demand for local oysters Oyster Restoration and Replenishment Activities MDNR setting aside portions of Eastern Bay as sanctuaries Political support for restoration Additional interest and funding for Eastern Bay Continued support for oyster restoration through sanctuaries, repletion program for public fishery, and support of aquaculture production in EB and other areas within MD portion of Bay Ongoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areas MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
 Proximity to infrastructure to move oyster product (Rt. 50/301) and tourist destination (Kent Island) increases demand for local oysters Oyster Restoration and Replenishment Activities MDNR setting aside portions of Eastern Bay as sanctuaries Political support for restoration Additional interest and funding for Eastern Bay Continued support for oyster restoration through sanctuaries, repletion program for public fishery, and support of aquaculture production in EB and other areas within MD portion of Bay Ongoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areas MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
 and tourist destination (Kent Island) increases demand for local oysters Oyster Restoration and Replenishment Activities MDNR setting aside portions of Eastern Bay as sanctuaries Political support for restoration Additional interest and funding for Eastern Bay Continued support for oyster restoration through sanctuaries, repletion program for public fishery, and support of aquaculture production in EB and other areas within MD portion of Bay Ongoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areas MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
Oyster Restoration and Replenishment ActivitiesMDNR setting aside portions of Eastern Bay as sanctuariesPolitical support for restorationAdditional interest and funding for Eastern BayContinued support for oyster restoration through sanctuaries, repletion program for public fishery, and support of aquaculture production in EB and other areas within MD portion of BayOngoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areasMD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
 2. Oyster Restoration and Replenishment Activities MDNR setting aside portions of Eastern Bay as sanctuaries Political support for restoration Additional interest and funding for Eastern Bay Continued support for oyster restoration through sanctuaries, repletion program for public fishery, and support of aquaculture production in EB and other areas within MD portion of Bay Ongoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areas MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
 Political support for restoration Additional interest and funding for Eastern Bay Continued support for oyster restoration through sanctuaries, repletion program for public fishery, and support of aquaculture production in EB and other areas within MD portion of Bay Ongoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areas MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
 Additional interest and funding for Eastern Bay Continued support for oyster restoration through sanctuaries, repletion program for public fishery, and support of aquaculture production in EB and other areas within MD portion of Bay Ongoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areas MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
 Continued support for oyster restoration through sanctuaries, repletion program for public fishery, and support of aquaculture production in EB and other areas within MD portion of Bay Ongoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areas MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
 repletion program for public fishery, and support of aquaculture production in EB and other areas within MD portion of Bay Ongoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areas MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
 Production in EB and other areas within MD portion of Bay Ongoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areas MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
 Ongoing restoration and shell, seed, and spat on shell plantings in properly sited areas MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
 MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
MD State gov., QA Co gov., watermen and others on OAC
for and all all all and defined and an end of the second states FD .
focused attention and dedicated resources to restoring EB
Oyster nabitat (2022)
Shell recovery – Open bag dredging has helped clean shells, turn
A Management Tools and the Descent development of eviden management rise
Recent development of oyster management plan
Recent adoption of stock assessment methods to support
Oyster management

	•	Aquac	ulture						
5. Improved Communication	•	More	NGO	awareness	campaigns	and	social	media	by
		watermen							
	•	Watermen being more receptive to change							

B. Headwinds

Factors that Workgroup members felt are impeding oyster production and habitat in Eastern Bay:

- 1. Lack of oyster habitat and broodstock to support sustainable population
- 2. Conditions, fisheries management, and activities in Eastern Bay are limiting the recovery of oysters, harvest, and the ability to properly manage them
- 3. Continued development in watershed continues to degrade water quality
- 4. Collaboration and communication continues to be challenging

Overarching Topic	Summary of Details Provided by OCW Members					
1. Lack of Oyster Habitat and	 Lack of substrate to enhance existing oyster habitat 					
Broodstock to Support	 Lack of funding for enhancement activities 					
Sustainable Population Levels	Seed/larvae availability is inconsistent or limiting Poor spat set					
	Poor spat set					
	• Lack of available substrate and seed to boost habitat and					
	population has hampered advancement					
	 Not enough shell and spat-on-shell plantings 					
2. Conditions, Management,	• Disease pressure, 2022 die off from MSX and dermo					
and Activities in Eastern Bay	Heavy rain events (2018)					
	• Multiple years of low harvest has allowed for tremendous					
	amounts of sedimentation to cover previously harvestable					
	areas and have limited spat recruitment					
	Bar cleaning					
	Power dredge					
	Overharvesting on dredge bottom					
	Poaching					
	• Large area of Eastern Bay makes enforcing lease and sanctuary					
	boundaries challenging					
	• Large fetch in many directions, which makes working in Eastern					
	Bay a challenge, also presents challenge for deploying					
	aquaculture gear					
	 Not enough turning bottom and cleaning shell 					
	 Too much area being taken from wild harvest 					
3. Continued Development	• Increased bacteria loads from waterfront property					
Impacts Water Quality	development on Kent Island are closing more areas in Eastern					
	Bay to shellfish harvest (for wild harvest and aquaculture)					
	• Water quality associated with development and lacking sewage					
	treatment					
	Shoreline is overpopulated					
	Pollution, run-off, siltation					

	Low dissolved oxygen levels
	• QA County gov. has promoted and allowed significant
	development to occur in surrounding critical areas during 1980
	to present
4. Collaboration and	• Pushback from multiple user groups that are one-sided in their
Communication	vision of Eastern Bay oyster production
	Bureaucracy
	• Lack of community support for aquaculture siting near
	waterfront homes – large quantity of uninformed landowners
	on Kent Island makes aquaculture leasing impossible in near-
	shore locations
	Lack of cooperation with watermen
	 Some stakeholders not receptive to change
	• Continued lack of trust between management and groups with
	a stake in oyster production.
	• Lack of commitment for data driven decisions guided by
	appropriate science.
	• Lack of value for expert ecological local knowledge in decision
	making.
	• Rules, regulations not easily understood by the general public,
	everyone has opinions but no understanding

C. Trends

Trends (e.g., social, political, economic, etc.) that Workgroup members felt are affecting oyster production and habitat in Eastern Bay currently or in the coming years:

- 1. Political support is generally in favor of oysters, but is challenging to navigate
- 2. Overdevelopment in watershed continues
- 3. Economy and funding are currently favorable for oyster production. However, funding is competitive, not guaranteed, not always well spent, and gaps remain
- 4. Increased oyster activities and management initiatives focused on Eastern Bay
- 5. Current environmental conditions and impacts from climate change will have variable impacts on oyster production and habitat value
- 6. Limited availability of substate (i.e., shell) due to competing substrate needs
- 7. Loss of widespread knowledge of oyster culture in Eastern Bay continues

Overarching Topic	Summary of Details Provided by OCW Members					
1. Political Support	• Political will supports oyster restoration efforts, generally irrespective of political party					
	Administration changes (political) tend to effect ongoing efforts long-term					
	• Increasingly divisive and misinformed political landscape will make management more difficult					
	NIMBY-based protests to lease applications					
	Administration changes (political) tend to effect ongoing efforts long-term					

	• Interest in restoration efforts is getting tiresome, creating a lack of organizations willing to invest in this and future long-term restoration efforts
2. Overdevelopment in Watershed	 Overdevelopment in watershed may impair water quality through increased runoff Expanding sewer collection system to replace septic tanks on Kent Island
3. Funding and Economy	 Increased attention and funding for oysters Increased interest among groups and funding sources are (will) enhance restoration/fishing efforts and oysters/habitat Impending economic recession beginning to affect consumer spending (less disposable income to spend on seafood) Interest in restoration efforts is getting tiresome, creating a lack of organizations willing to invest in this and future long-term restoration efforts Increased competition for available funding Wasting money on meetings that go nowhere – put the money in the water Labor shortage in seafood industry is limiting oyster harvest, distribution, and growth of aquaculture Public demand for product at restaurants and privately
4. Increased Oyster Focus in Eastern Bay	 Aquaculture has grown by 24% since 2012 DNR Seed and shell program DNR Eastern Bay sanctuary project DNR Eastern Bay public fishery project Creating increased spat sets via additional plantings will generate momentum and commitment
5. Environmental Conditions	 Some new Chesapeake Bay fisheries (black sea bass, red drum, speckled trout) rely on oyster reefs Increased frequency of significant rain events will cause more freshets and localized shellfish closures Preciptiation in Maryland has increased by 10.4% since 1901 Increased frequency of nuisance flooding will restrict expansion of seafood industry (limited real estate to expand, viability of working waterfront) More frequent and harsher droughts will result in higher prevalence of disease in oyster populations Warming waters will lead to greater risk of seafood pathogens (e.g., vibrio) and hurt oyster production Ocean acidification could have consequences for oyster shell formation

7. Oyster Culture	•	Public likes seeing NGOs partner with watermen to educate
	•	Fading recognition of watermen culture with public and
		politically

D. Key Strategic Issues & Critical Challenges

Workgroup members were asked to rank how critical they thought each of the following prompts were for improving oyster habitat and production in Eastern Bay. Some members provided additional context on related issues and key information required to address each prompt.

Average	Very	Critical	Somewhat	Less	Not	Don't Know	No Response			
Rating	Critical		Critical	Critical	Critical					
4.1	5	4	3	2	1	0				
	9	3	1	3	0	0	1			
Related	Oyster	's importance	as ecosystem e	engineers						
Issues	 Evalua 	valuating success of restoration is a moving target in face of climate and land use change –								
	restor	ation siting sho	uld concentrat	e on resilient	and practica	l locations for lor	ng-term success			
	 Land ι 	ise impacts on	watershed, wa	iter quality, a	nd oysters					
	 Suppo 	rt restoration a	ind sanctuaries	s along with s	supporting th	e industry				
	 Impor 	 Important to understand overlapping economic activities in Eastern Bay (e.g., other fisheries) 								
	Strate	Strategic sanctuary and replenishment placement								
	Shell r	Shell resource dynamics and needs – how to manage scarce existing shell and provide clean								
	shell f	shell for bottom, how incorporate alternate substrates								
	NGOs	NGOs should be teaching about importance and role of oysters in Eastern Bay. Interpretive								
	signs i	n Kent Narrows	s would help w	vith general e	ducation					
	 Lack (stakek 	of unified plai	n to effective	ay manage	and use ava	allable funding	to support all			
		norebensive av	lantive manag	omont nlan f	or decision m	aking				
Kov	Data	howing that		vicos of har	voctod roofs	lacking compa	rad to haalthy			
Information		ted reefs	ecosystem ser	vices of fiar	vesteu reers	lacking compa	red to healthy			
Required	 Inform 	nation on land u	ise and sewag	e innuts othe	er nutrient in	nuts				
	Scale/	trend/location	of overlapping	e conomic ac	ctivities	puto				
	 Siltation 	on and water o	uality surveys	,						
	Access	to QA Cour	ity Comprehe	nsive Plan	– GIS mapp	ing overlaid w	ith anticipated			
	develo	pment plans, v	vater quality n	nodeling of fu	uture develo	pment coupled v	with QA County			
	septic	records to asse	ess impacts fro	m aging sept	ic systems					
	Bottor	n types, Gear t	ypes							
	 Inform 	nation on alterr	ate substrates	5						
	Currer	nt known distril	oution of oyste	er habitat in E	В.					
	Currer	nt harvest recon	ds from EB pu	blic fishery.						
	Histor	ical planting da	ta, monitoring	data showin	g success (or	not) of planting	S			
	 Inform 	nation on allow	vable substrat	tes, sources	of substrate	, and infrastruc	ture to deploy			
	substr	ates.								
	● Estima	ites of how mu	ch substrate is	needed.						
	 Input 	from managem	ent on overall	goal to resto	re oyster hab	oitat in Eastern B	ау			

1. The Role of Oysters in a Healthy Eastern Bay System.

2. Oyster Habitat Characteristics and Restoration Siting.

<u> </u>				1 .1			
Suitable	locations	heights	water	denth	and	salinity	
Sancabic	iocacions,		water	acpui,	anu	Junity	

Average	Very	Critical	Somewhat	Less	Not	Don't Know	No Response		
Rating	Critical		Critical	Critical	Critical				
4.4	5	4	3	2	1	0			
	8	7	1	0	0	0	1		
Related Issues	 Siting s produce Conside (for pr plantin Sugges All of t everyo Lack of Recover Manag Location and aq 	Siting should occur in areas where broodstock can do best, where reefs are currently productive Consider bottom data (benthic composition and existing substrate), tidal and current data (for predicting larvae source-sink dynamics, siltation patterns), water quality data, past planting data, etc. Suggest changes to current regulations to help meet goals All of the stakeholders need to be at the table to discuss who gets access to what areas, everyone gets a vote. Lack of shell due to sediment Recovering substrate, Planting shells Management and restoration plan needs to be adaptive Location of current management boundaries delineating public fishing grounds, restoration, and aquaculture. Considerations for changing these and rationale							
	 Equitat Lack of Lack of No con 	Equitable distribution of suitable locations/areas is a primary need Lack of substrate Lack of a unified plan to effectively manage and use available funding to support all sectors. No comprehensive adaptive management plan for decision making.							
Кеу	Up to c	late oyster hal	pitat and botto	om survey dat	ta in Eastern	Вау			
Information	 DNR ar 	inual oyster su	irvey data in E	astern Bay in	sanctuaries a	and public bars			
Required	 DNR Cł Siltatio databa Historia Historia Currentia 	DNR Chesapeake Bay-wide oyster survey data Siltation and water quality data (access to DNR Eyes on the Bay, NOAA CBOFS, ShoreRivers database) Historical planting data, monitoring data showing success (or not) of plantings Historical and recent use by area, current disposition of water bottom, and current interests. Current known distribution of oyster habitat in EB.							
	 Information substration Input fill 	ites. rom managem	ent on overall	goal to resto	re oyster hat	, and infrastruc	ιατέ το αεριογ		

3. Siting of Aquaculture Leases and Public Fishery Replenishment Activities.

Average	Very	Critical	Somewhat	Less	Not	Don't Know	No Response
Rating	Critical		Critical	Critical	Critical		
3.9	5	4	3	2	1	0	
	5	5	3	2	0	0	2
Related	Emphasize importance of establishing healthy broodstock in sanctuaries						
Issues	Industry	leads selectio	on of harvest re	eefs for plant	ing		
	Lease siting challenging if space conflicts with other use						
	Focus plantings on areas only highly productive for fishery						
	Work w	ith watermen	on ways to su	oport fishery			
	Should I	pe easier to ob	otain a lease				
	Should f	ocus on creati	ing new habita	it			
	• Educating industry and public on (1) where aquaculture leases can occur and (2) gear used to						
	harvest from them						
	Ensure l	ease application	ons aren't acq	uiring free in	ventory from	public or comm	ercial plantings

	Aquaculture should not impede on wild harvesting, and vise versa.
	• The perception that fishery replenishment takes a back seat to oyster recovery
	Wye Island Sanctuary
	Equitable distribution of suitable locations/areas is a primary need
	• Location of current management boundaries delineating public fishing grounds, restoration,
	and aquaculture. Considerations for changing these and rationale – Yates Bar regulatory
	boundaries and regulations need to be overhauled to allow for expansion of aquaculture and
	to help optimize public fishery siting
	• Definition of habitat characteristics used as a rule to allow aquaculture to be sited in EB and
	MD in general.
	Characteristics used to determine oyster habitat worthy of repletion activities.
Кеу	• Identify areas where public opposition to lease siting is low, identify incentives to lease in
Information	these areas
Required	Groundtruthing/ up to date oyster habitat and bottom survey data in Eastern Bay
	 Information on areas that are prone to poor and good water quality
	DNR annual oyster survey data in Eastern Bay in sanctuaries and public bars
	DNR Chesapeake Bay-wide oyster survey data
	• Current expanse of oyster aquaculture leases in Eastern Bay, and what percentage of the
	oysters harvested from Eastern Bay are from aquaculture?
	• What information was used to determine current management structure to delineate
	boundaries of public fishing grounds, restoration, and aquaculture.
	What are the metrics used by DNR to determine whether public oyster grounds are viable for
	repletion efforts?

4. Oyster Substrate and Cultch.

Availability and use of shell or alternate cultch materials

Average	Very	Critical	Somewhat	Less	Not	Don't Know	No Response
Rating	Critical		Critical	Critical	Critical		
4.8	5	4	3	2	1	0	
	11	3	0	0	0	1	0
Related Issues	 The lack ability for Cost of product Shell reconstruct Shell reconstruct State and Need to Use of b Incentiv Options conduct Equitable achievin Lack of a 	of suitable su or spat to surv shell limits an ion cycling efforts d federal pern identify wher iomimetic/syr ize local seafo for recoverir ing restoration le availability ag any gains in a unified plant	bstrate is grea ive, restricts nount that can are critically u nitting require e shell is alrea nthetic shell in od processors ng shell – e.g n or on aquacu and distributic oyster producto to identify and	test hurdle to n be planted nderstaffed a ements to imp dy on the bo the long-tern to retain she s., power dro ulture leases on of substra ction in the sy I manage ava	and ultimate and under fur port shell and ttom and foc m ell for Eastern edging and/o te (as well as ystem	ration – lack of c e impact on oys nded d/or use alternat us efforts there Bay or cleaning oyst s larvae/seed) w ate sources	lean shell limits ter habitat and e materials er bars where ill be critical to
Key	No com Ontions	to recover sh	aptive manage	ement plan to	sumption re	aking atain shell in Mar	wland
Information	DNR's sl	hell budget for	Maryland and	d Fastern Bay	- does this e	xist?	yianu
Required	Data sh find/acc	owing the eff juire materials	icacy of altern	native substr	ates – cost,	results from tes	sting, where to

 Information on reef height requirements to mitigate hypoxic periods in summer
Investigate whether oyster shell is available from out of state, and the cost to import
 Political decisions on if/where to dredge shell from historic reefs that are currently not open to harvest
A review of Gov Exec Order to explore alternatives to oyster shell
Data on spat set trends
Data on sanctuary productivity
Historic oyster habitat in Eastern Bay to inform proper siting and identify in-water sources of shell
Current and projected needs, sources, costs, etc.
Information on allowable substrates, sources of substrate, and infrastructure to deploy substrates
Input from management on overall goal to restore oyster habitat in EB. What defines success?

5. Water Quality and Quantity.

Freshwater flow, quantity, timing, nutrient loading and other inputs, salinity balance, parasites and disease, and drought

Average Bating	Very	Critical	Somewhat	Less	Not	Don't Know	No Response
3.9	5	Δ	2	2	1	0	
5.5	5	7	2	2	0	0	1
Pelated	 Salinity 	rango in Easto	rn Povis gono	1 2 rally high one	ugh for ovst	r roproduction a	
		for less diseas	a prossure	any nigh end	lugii ioi oyste		
135005	Eroshot	s and impacts	e pressure on natural ove	ter reproduct	tion		
	Mastow	s and impacts of	ao trootmont	nollution - E	ivpand the co	war collection s	istom on Kont
		ater and sewa	ge ti eatiment,	tment plan	spand the se	wer conection sy	Stem on Kent
	Dead zo	nes – where a	re these in Fac	storn Bay?			
	Bacteria	monitoring to	e triese in Las	safoty			
	Bacteria	a monitoring to	ts (droughts a	and increased	frequency o	f major rain ever	atc)
	Extreme Existing	groups condu	rting water gu	ality monitor	ing and oxist	ing data in Easta	rn Pov
	Long to	groups condu	nuts will infor	m how to dist	tributo rocom	monded actions	across the
	• Long te	The workgrou	puts will infor	nn now to uis	a trands may	inform siting of	difforent
	activitie		p should explo		e trenus may	inform siting of	umerent
	How to	successfully in	tegrate ovster	nutrient red	uction value i	into water qualit	v planning
	Monito	ring of oyster o	lisease and na	rasites		into Mater quant	<i>)</i> pianing
Kev	Climate	change imnac	ts on ovster re	estoration out	tromes in Fas	tern Bay (short-	term)
Information	Ovster	RMP status and	l criteria			Stern Bay (Short	certify
required	 Information 	tion on curren	t water quality	monitoring	efforts		
	Historic	al data on dise	ase water qualit	ality nutrient	loading out	nut from wastew	vater
	treatme	ent plants etc	and resulting	impacts to ov	sters in all m	anagement zone	ovster
	disease	and mortality	data)	inipuets to o			
	Informa	tion from OA	and Talbot Cou	inty and State	e officials abo	out water quality	priorities and
	needs					at tracer quality	
	Informa	ition on curren	t oyster disea	se and morta	lity monitorir	ng efforts	

Average Pating	Very	Critical	Somewhat Critical	Less Critical	Not Critical	Don't Know	No Response
3 3	5	Δ	2	2	1	0	
5.5	2	4	6	2	1	1	1
Related	Z Impactor	of increased	dovelopment		the Eastern (L ±	P watershed on
	• Inipacts	s of increased	nonulation an	d ovster indu	ine Eastern s	and the end of economy)	b watershed on
135005	Eastern	Bay is a maio	tourist location	n many hoa	istry (includin	ea throughout th	he summer
	There w	von't he a sust	ainable fisher	/industry if t	he water qua	ality is too adver	selv affected by
	land us	e regardless o	f restoration e	fforts	ine water que		Sely affected by
	Chesan	eake National	Recreational A	rea impacts	– How many	is too many neo	nle?
	Critical	Area Commiss	ion has enoug	h rules and r	egs on devel	opment and no	w OA County is
	under t	he MS 3 permi	it			opinient, and no	
	The wo	rkgroup shoul	d stav focused	on impacts of	on ovsters – i	t is not our purp	ose to dive into
	land us	e issues and ad	lvocacy	•	,		
	In-wate	r solutions car	n only go so fai	r to address is	ssues caused	by land use	
	Eco-tou	rism can be us	ed to raise aw	areness and	local buy in f	or project recom	nmendations
	How do	es the growth	of newer pub	lic and busin	ess strategies	s like tourism im	pact watermen
	culture	and the recog	nition of the ir	nportance of	a heathy EB	system to huma	ns?
Кеу	Informa	ation that can l	pe communica	ted about liv	ing shoreline	s and shoreline	protections that
Information	incorpo	rate oysters to	o combat incre	ase in harder	ned shoreline	S	
Required	Land us	e maps					
	Current	status and tr	ends of land u	se changes t	o set expect	ations; workgrou	up can't control
	these						
	Historic	and current d	ata on oyster	sales for regional section in the section of the se	on and harve	st numbers	
	Access	to current QA	County Compr	ehensive Pla	n		
	GIS map	pping overlaid	with anticipat	ed developm	nent plans. R	esulting water q	uality modeling
	of futur	re developmer	nt coupled wit	h QA County	septic recor	ds to assess im	pact from aging
	septic s	ystems.					
	A list of	businesses/co	ompanies that	are involved	in ecotourisn	n	
	Informa	ation from wat	ermen's assoc	iation on con	nmunity supp	port for planning	and finances

6. Land Use, Development, and Tourism Impacts on the Fishery and Eastern Bay System.

7. Lack of Holistic, Sustainable Eastern Bay Management Plan Informed by Science.

Average	Very	Critical	Somewhat	Less	Not	Don't Know	No Response
Rating	Critical		Critical	Critical	Critical		
3.8	5	4	3	2	1	0	
	5	2	2	3	0	3	2
Related	• It is impo	ortant to have	a managemer	nt plan for eva	aluation, succ	ession plantings	, and continued
Issues	monitor	ing. Making su	ire restoration	efforts are w	orking and th	lat the investme	nts in the public
	fishery a	ire sustainable	e are critical.				
	 Streamli 	ning ability fo	r aquaculture	to implemen	t farming pra	ctices could allo	w more oysters
	to be pla	anted with pri	vate funds and	d relieve pres	sure on the p	ublic fishery are	as.
	Current	DNR oyster m	anagement pl	an – differing	g perspective	s on what scienc	e is/is not used
	in currei	nt plan and ac	tivities in Easte	ern Bay			
	 Navigati 	ng personal a	gendas will be	challenging t	to reach cons	ensus	
	Harvest	thresholds, cr	itical mass tar	gets			
	Increasi	ng distrust in s	cience by som	ne stakeholde	ers/public		
	The grou	up should expl	ore what man	agement pla	ns are alread	y in place for oth	ner areas of the
	Chesape	ake Bay, and	d investigate	components	from those	management	plans that are

	applicable to the Eastern Bay
	A holistic and science-based plan is the only way to make meaningful progress
	How to maintain a plan and who owns and implements the plan
Key Information Required	Restoring public fishery areas with public money should be tightly linked to sustainability monitoring. An ineffective public restoration would be one where public funds are used every season or every few seasons to replenish what is unsustainably harvested. Rotational harvest
	should be a recommendation, as well as harvest techniques that are least impactful to oyster habitat and potential reproduction.
	• The Working Group should recommend that the delay or gap between applying for an aquaculture lease and being able to plant oysters be reduced dramatically through investments by the relevant agencies.
	Need a discussion of how a lack of such a plan is an impediment
	Comprehensive plan and future funding
	Historic annual spat set data
	Weather (precipitation & water quality) records
	Oyster density maps
	Priorities of each interested group
	See other sections

8. Status of Eastern Bay Public Oyster Fishery Management and Strategy

Average Rating	Very Critical	Critical	Somewhat Critical	Less Critical	Not Critical	Don't Know	No Response	
3.9	5	4	3	2	1	0		
	4	5	6	0	0	1	1	
Related Issues	 What is manage recomm Harvest broodst that res public a Current populat Need to PSFA oy PFSA su PFSA ac Sanctua Lack of a No com Location 	5 5 the current ment strateg eendations ing of restore ock. It should toration effort reas. ly not a major ion and harves know this in c ster density re bstrate compo- tivities and plan ry productivity a unified plan prehensive ad n of current m	6 managemen ies of this s ed public fish- not be the go s should set u public fishery st combination w equirements osition, lack of nned future a v to effectively r aptive manage anagement bo	0 t strategy? ystem will e ery bottom bal for public p a sustainab in Eastern Ba ith expansion substrate ctivities – ban manage and u ement plan fo bundaries del	O An analysis educate wor should be m funds to rep le harvest are ay – Poor rec n of aquacult r cleaning, pla use available or decision m lineating pub	1 of the current kgroup membe nanaged so as i plenish PFAs inde ea for licensed ha ruitment has led ure anting spat on sh funding to suppo aking lic fishing groun	1 (and/or past) rs and inform not to deplete efinitely; rather arvesters in the I to a decline in hell, others ort all sectors ds, restoration,	
	 and aqu Charact 	aculture eristics used to	o determine o	yster habitat	worthy of re	pletion activities		
Key Information required	 Summai What do Historic annual s Informa substrat 	Characteristics used to determine oyster habitat worthy of repletion activities Summary presentation by DNR on main fishery topics and current management strategy What do we hope to have in the future and how do we get there Historic harvest records with some level of accuracy, benthic maps of oyster habitat, DNR annual survey of public bars to identify most productive fishery areas Information on allowable substrates, sources of substrate, and infrastructure to deploy						

• Input from management on overall goal to restore oyster habitat in EB. What defines success?
• What information was used to determine current management structure to delineate
boundaries of public fishing grounds, restoration, and aquaculture
• What are the metrics used by DNR to determine whether public oyster grounds are viable for
repletion efforts?

9. Emergence of Aquaculture. And its relationship to wild oyster harvest in Eastern Bay

Average	Very	Critical	Somewhat	Less	Not	Don't Know	No Response	
Rating	Critical		Critical	Critical	Critical			
2.9	5	4	3	2	1	0		
	1	5	3	0	4	2	2	
Related	lated • Oysters are placed at private expense in aquaculture							
Issues	Aquacul	ture's main be	enefit is to red	uce pressure	on the PFSAs	s in Eastern Bay		
	Aquacul	ture has helpe	ed the public fi	shery design	ate Maryland	l as a year-round	d quality source	
	for oyste	ers						
	Aquacul	ture and publ	ic fishery rare	ly compete f	or the same	customer base -	- any conflict is	
	unfound	led						
	Resource	e allocation to	and growth o	f both wild fi	shery and aq	uaculture should	l be equitable	
	Are ther	e any spillove	er benefits fro	m aquacultu	re to the fish	ery? Are oysters	s introduced to	
	leases s	pawning and	spilling over	to viable bo	ottom substra	ate? Many oyst	er farmers use	
	primarily	y triploids whi	ch don't repro	duce				
	Fundam	ental concern	s that aquacul	ture will clos	e off areas to	wild harvest – l	now can spatial	
	conflict	be resolved ed	uitably? How	can leasing b	e expanded	and leases be sit	ed equitably to	
	ennance	e wild harvest	and water qua	ility?			T he second second	
		erstandings of	the value aqu	laculture has	on the local	environment –	The workgroup	
		culture wild c	s of equilable	distribution (oractions	nd ways to educ	ate user groups	
		unified plant	to effectively r	nanage and i	use available	funding to supp	ort all sectors	
		arehensive ad	antive manage	ment nlan fo	or decision m	aking	Sectors	
	Location	of current m	anagement bo	undaries del	lineating nub	lic fishing ground	ds restoration	
	and agu	aculture						
	Definitio	on of habitat c	haracteristics	used as a rul	e to allow ag	uaculture to be	sited in EB and	
	MD in ge	eneral						
Кеу	• The curr	ent wait time	to be allocate	ed a lease is	way too long	g. Recommendat	ions should be	
Information	made to	DNR that allo	w for a strear	nlined proces	ss for lease a	pplications, espe	cially for those	
Required	intendin	g to participa	te in regenera	tive aquacult	ure efforts (i	.e. planting diplo	oids, harvesting	
	via divin	g or hand-ton	ging, water co	lumn leases v	vs. SLLs, etc.)			
	Consult	with leasing ir	ndustry.					
	Harvest	data both froi	n public fisher	y and aquacu	ulture			
	 Lease ap 	plication reco	rds from DNR	 Average iss 	suance time f	or Eastern Bay le	eases, compiled	
	list of re	asons for leas	e application o	opposition an	id ranking the	em.		
	Accurate	e oyster densi	ties to open/cl	ose PSFAs an	id expand lea	sing in Eastern B	ay	
	Data on	numbers of a	quaculture lea	ses, numbers	s of oysters h	arvested, curren	t and expected	
	acres of	bottom with a	aquaculture le	ases				
	Input fro	om manageme	ent on overall g	goal to restor	e oyster habi	tat in EB. What d	efines success?	
	 What in 	formation w	as used to d	etermine cu	rrent manag	ement structur	e to delineate	
	boundar	ries of public f	ishing grounds	, restoration	, and aquacul	lture.		

10. Oysters and Chesapeake Bay in Decline.

Status quo is failing

Average	Very	Critical	Somewhat	Less	Not	Don't Know	No Response			
Rating	Rating Critical		Critical	Critical	Critical					
3.5	5	4	3	2	1	0				
	2	6	4	3	0	1	1			
Related	Oyster r	estoration co	uld be a uniqu	ie and critica	l tool in the	efforts to clean	up waterways,			
Issues	shore up	shore up the regional economy, and become more resilient in the face of climate change								
	Focusing	g on overall Ba	y health is too	broad for th	is discussion					
	Climate	change will ha	ve an impact	on oyster hat	oitat and pro	duction				
	 Symbiot 	ic relationship	between oyst	ters and SAV.	Habitat crea	tion value				
	More th	an just oyste	rs are in decl	ine in the U	oper Bay — s	should consider	crabs, baitfish,			
	rockfish, and oysters									
	How Ease	tern Bay is im	pacted by othe	er forces/effo	orts in the bro	oader Chesapeak	e Bay, and how			
	efforts o	ompete for re	sources							
	Lack of	a unified plan	to effectively	manage and	use availab	e funding to sup	oport all oyster			
	stakeho	ders								
	No com	prehensive ad	aptive manage	ement plan fo	or decision m	aking				
	Location	of current m	anagement bo	oundaries del	ineating pub	lic fishing groun	ds, restoration,			
	and aqu	aculture								
	Definition	on of habitat c	haracteristics	used as a rule	e to allow aq	uaculture to be	sited in Eastern			
	Bay and	MD in genera								
Кеу	Drivers	of decline – na	tural and hum	an-induced						
Information	Ecologic	al service mea	surements pr	ovided by aqu	uaculture, wi	ld fishery, and re	storation			
required	Historica	al data on cato	h for oysters,	blue crabs, a	nd rockfish, a	ind water quality	information			
	Input fro	om manageme	nt on overall g	goal to restore	e oyster habi	tat in EB. What d	efines success?			
	 What in 	formation wa	as used to d	etermine cu	rrent manag	ement structur	e to delineate			
	bounda	ies of public fi	shing grounds	, restoration,	, and aquacu	lture				

11. Public Awareness.

Awareness of culture, economy, and environment in Eastern Bay

Average	Very	Critical	Somewhat	Less	Not	Don't Know	No Response
Rating	Critical		Critical	Critical	Critical		
3.8	5	4	3	2	1	0	
	3	8	2	2	0	2	0
Related Issues	5 4 3 2 1 0 3 8 2 2 0 2 0 • It's important for the public to be informed about the efforts to restore the oyste and the ecosystem services provided by healthy reefs. If the general public, and property owners are supportive of restoration, conservation, and aquaculture, the all becomes more effective. • Awareness needs to focus on continual education to the public on the benefits of public harvest and aquaculture. All have a valuable part in sustaining a viable proysters • It is critical to figure out how best to engage, and successfully engage the consurrounding Eastern Bay • Rely on experience and expertise of divers – what are they seeing? How can we bottom in their eyes? • Public education on food safety and water quality • Demonstrate the efficacy of sanctuaries to the public						

	Success relies on a focused, clearly communicated, results-driven process
	• Efforts by other NGO's to promote awareness, economy and environment should be surveyed,
	so the 'wheel is not reinvented'. Select what works from other NGO endeavors and apply to
	an Eastern Bay plan.
	• Funding and staffing to deliver oyster education programs. CBEC already delivers oyster
	education programs that can built upon.
	• How does the growth of newer public and business strategies like tourism impact watermen
	culture and the recognition of the importance of a heathy EB system to humans?
Кеу	Solid, science-based communication strategies
Information	Define key groups in Eastern Bay watershed
required	Environmental impact of sanctuaries on fishery enhancement
	Consumer perception of Eastern Bay oysters
	• Results and perception of stakeholders at a broader scale – from groups making a living on the
	water, from other oyster restoration/multi-use regions
	Information on QA and Talbot County comprehensive community plan
	• Information from watermen's association on community support for planning and financial
	support

12. Current Process for Building Consensus on Oyster Restoration and Management in Eastern Bay.

Average	Very	Critical	Somewhat	Less	Not	Don't Know	No Response
Rating	Critical		Critical	Critical	Critical		
3.6	5	4	3	2	1	0	
	3 5 5 2 0 1						1
Related	• Scale – consensus-building process around the Choptank River was considered a success						
Issues	recent C	Chesapeake Ba	y-wide effort	was much mo	ore challengir	ng	
	 Past sar 	nctuary and ir	ndustry efforts	s (public and	l private) hav	ve been separat	e and often in
	conflict						
	 Seems t 	oo contentiou	s, needs to be	more respec	tful and prod	luctive	
	Shared	understanding	and goals are	required to i	move forward	d	
	 Define ι 	iser groups					
	Data is o	critical to any o	discussion and	the process	should heavil	ly rely on this	
	Lack of	vision and goa	ls associated v	vith existing o	collaborative	management str	ructure
	How to	design a collat	orative struct	ure that can	be adaptive b	based on user inp	out.
	Define r	neasurable go	als, objectives	, and metrics	to achieve m	neasurable result	(S
Кеу	An unde	erstanding of t	he thoughts ar	nd goals of ea	ich group, an	d how each grou	p is affected by
Information	the out	come					
required	Historic	al data on fishi	ing effort and l	harvest trend	ls in Eastern E	Bay – number of	license holders,
	catch to	tals going bac	k 50 years				
	Oyster p	opulation nur	nbers and trei	nds			
	Water q	uality data an	d trends				
	Input fr	om managem	ent on how c	urrent mana	gement bodi	es and input is	used to inform
	manage	ment				-	
	Input free	om manageme	ent on overall g	goal to restor	e oyster habi	tat in EB. What d	efines success?

13. Availability of Resources.

Funding	, infrastructure,	oyster	larvae,	workforce
---------	-------------------	--------	---------	-----------

Average	Very	Critical	Somewhat	Less	Not	Don't Know	No Response
Rating	Critical		Critical	Critical	Critical		
4.4	5	4	3	2	1	0	
	8	7	2	0	0	0	0
Related Issues	 Ample a support There is that inte Hatcher product How to Available Equitable 	Ample and maintained funding levels and sources are required – how much is required to support comprehensive restoration of Eastern Bay, is current funding enough? There is high interest among Eastern Bay constituents in oyster restoration in sanctuaries, and that interest can be leveraged to hold state agencies to prescribed funding levels Hatchery status, capacity, and larval availability/needs to support oyster restoration and production in Eastern Bay How to use limited resources wisely? – where to invest, how much, when Available substrate for oyster production (e.g., shell) Equitable distribution of resources will be critical					
Key Information required	 Workforce development goals, needs, and plans for growing wild fishery and aquaculture Current regulatory framework and laws that support or detract from oyster production Maps of Eastern Bay habitat and water quality Available and upcoming resources, relationships, funding levels, and funding sources Number of harvesters exploiting oysters in Eastern Bay Recent harvest trends of oyster harvest in Eastern Bay Information from QA and Talbot County on where the oyster production workforce fits in their strategy and what resources are available to support Information on hatcheries 						

14. Recreation and Tourism in Eastern Bay.

Average	Very	Critical	Somewhat	Less	Not	Don't Know	No Response	
Rating	Critical		Critical	Critical	Critical			
2.8	5	4	3	2	1	0		
	2	3	3	4	3	1	1	
Related	Recreati	on and touris	m in EB is link	ed to oyster i	restoration o	only so far as rest	toration efforts	
Issues	contribu	contribute to swimmable, fishable waters. If restoration is done well, recreation and tourism						
	will incr	will increase without any further effort from the Working Group or the state.						
	 3rd spar 	 3rd span of Bay Bridge – what are anticipated impacts and traffic patterns? 						
	 Anticipa 	Anticipated tourism impacts from the establishment of the Chesapeake National Recreational						
	Area	Area						
	Wastew	 Wastewater plants too small to handle current weekend tourism influx 						
	How do	How does the growth of these newer public and business strategies like tourism impact						
	waterm	watermen culture and the recognition of the importance of a heathy EB system to humans?						
	What ar	What are the goals of QA and Talbot County on recreation and tourism; revenue, support, etc.						
Кеу	• The economic impacts of healthy oyster reefs to recreational fishing, charter industry, and							
Information	marina ı	marina revenue						
required	Review	• Review opportunities for expanding ecotourism and DNR's support for this – e.g., dive charters						
	to oyste	to oyster reefs						
	MDOT fi	nal timeline fo	or 3rd Bay Bric	lge span and	impact on lo	cal tourism in Ea	stern Bay	
	Informa	tion on QA and	d Talbot Count	y comprehen	isive commur	nity plans and wh	nere recreation,	
	tourism,	and oyster st	akeholders fit	in those plan	IS			

15. Other Issues

Additional Issues that the Workgroup would like to explore that were not listed in the Questionnaire:

- How does oyster production compete or impact other uses of and habitats/marine resources in Eastern Bay?
 - Need data from DNR Historic habitat and overlapping resources, maps of historic oyster and clam harvest and seeding
 - o Need data from counties on other uses of Eastern Bay
 - Need maps of SAV beds and information on current SAV restoration efforts in Eastern Bay
- Funding and long-term planning
- Other benefits of oyster habitat
- Incentivizing aquaculture via ecosystem improvement payments
- Harvest reporting Lack of enforceable harvest reporting requirements in public fishery makes effective/accurate stock assessment nearly impossible.
- DNR regulatory, permitting, licensing, and enforcement changes needed
 - Delays in permitting and lease issuance by DNR
 - Blanket DNR enforcement vs. smart DNR enforcement for both aquaculture and fishery
 - DNR regulatory overhaul as it relates to aquaculture and fishery
 - Limiting the amount of oyster harvest licenses available to new people
- Pile dredging in Miles River and Eastern Bay
- Upstream contributors of pollution
 - Conowingo Dam and massive release of sediment into the Bay
 - Treated sewage discharged into the Bay

V. Looking Forward

Workgroup members were asked to reflect on potential future scenarios for oysters and oyster habitat in Eastern Bay.

A. Undesirable Future

Workgroup members indicated that an undesirable future for Eastern Bay in 2033 would include the following elements which would lead to cascading impacts to the regional environment, economy, and culture. Most Workgroup members indicated that the most undesirable future would be the elimination of oysters in Eastern Bay.

- 1. A decline in or elimination of the oyster population in Eastern Bay
- 2. A lack of momentum, interest, and resources available for oyster restoration and production
- 3. Poor resource management and planning

Overarching Topic	Elements or Drivers of an Undesirable Future in Eastern Bay		
1. Decline in Oyster	Disease is prevalent		
Population	Continued degradation and loss of oyster habitat		
	• No viable fishery and no aquaculture to offset loss of oyster habitat		

	•	Siltation overwhelms oyster reefs – the bottom is desert, all reefs		
		are silted over (from storms or other processes)		
	•	Climate change impacts oyster population		
	•	Decline in oyster habitat results in devastation to other finfish		
		commercial fisheries and populations. Commercial harvest of		
		menhaden exceeds capacity for few remaining filter feeders to		
		keep up		
	•	Restoration sanctuaries fail due to poaching, disease, and/or		
		siltation		
	•	100-200 spat per bushel natural		
	•	No public oyster bars left for harvesting		
	•	No oysters		
	•	Oysters die off from weather or disease		
	•	The Kent Narrows has always been a window into the past, as is St.		
		Michaels. Now the charter boats are almost non-existent. The		
		oyster and clamming boats are gone, and commercial crabbing is		
		on its last breath. Everything being sold and consumed in St.		
		Michaels and the Narrows does not come from local waters, and		
		everywhere you go someone is telling a story about "When I was a		
		kid there were plenty of"		
2. Lack of Momentum,	•	Funding for conservation and replenishment has been diverted		
Interest, and Resources	•	Groups argue and interest wanes		
	•	Fewer oysters leads to fewer jobs for industry		
3. Poor Resource	•	Lack of sustainable wild fishery harvest due to poor reporting and		
Management and Planning		overharvest		
	•	Lack of aquaculture expansion due to lease issuance delays, lack of		
		viable leasable area, and continued opposition		
	•	Future of Eastern Bay resembles the current status quo – minimal		
		restoration effort, poorly managed system, no flexibility to amend		
		regulations based on water quality conditions and population		
		density		
	•	Increased development pressure and aging infrastructure leads to		
		large tracts of Eastern Bay being off limits to harvest due to		
		increased bacteria loads		
	•	Not allowing ecotourism, which could bring awareness		
	•	No bottom to be leased or restored due to regulations		
	•	A system without a holistic approach to management with no buy		
		in from major user groups, disparate projects		
	•	No unified approach to manage oyster productive has been		
		established – therefore, Eastern Bay oyster habitat is still		
		recruitment limited, substrate availability has not increased,		
		oyster production on public fishing grounds has not improved, the		
		presence of aquaculture has not increased, and the public and		
		businesses have no better understanding or appreciation of the		
		value of oysters and Eastern Bay Oyster habitat and its ecosystem		

B. Successful Future

Members were asked to draft a newspaper headline for the Baltimore Sun and Watermen's Gazette showcasing the successful future of Eastern Bay in 2033. The headlines, text, and other considerations that Workgroup members provided encompassed several key themes for a successful Eastern Bay.

- 1. Self-sustained oyster population
- 2. Sustained and booming harvest from fishery and aquaculture
- 3. Focused, impactful, sustainable resource management
- 4. Economic bounty and tourism
- 5. Cultural significance
- 6. Careful planning, relying on science and expertise, collaboration
- 7. Generous dedicated funding
- 8. Ecosystem benefits and resilience

Headlines for a Successful Outcome for Eastern Bay in 2033:

- "Eastern Bay Revival: A Triumph in Environmental Restoration and Sustainable Management"
- "Eastern Bay Shows a Heartbeat"

After decades of underperforming, Eastern Bay has shown life and hope for a better future. Spat set has improved to such a degree that this is seen as a signal that the efforts are yielding results..... Potential exists for the fishery and aquaculture sites to experience natural increases in harvest, not dependent on plantings and expensive intervention. Nature is rebounding....

• "A return to the 60's"

After many years of a degrading Eastern Bay since Hurricane Agnes in 1972, Eastern Bay has finally returned to its original luster. Successful oyster management was the key to this great achievement. Along with the return of the oyster population and sustainable public oyster fishery Eastern Bay is now the most productive aquaculture area in the Chesapeake Bay. SAV has again returned to new levels and along with have seen great numbers of crabs and fish flocking to the grass's sanctuary. Once seem destined for doom, Eastern Bay is back where it belongs and thru continual management practices will be for the foreseeable future.

- "10 years later: We have more oysters in Eastern Bay because we figured out how to work together"
- "Oyster harvest levels in Eastern Bay not seen in 30 years are sustained for fifth year in a row"
- "Recreational fishing tournament held in Eastern Bay a huge success thanks to restored oyster habitat"
- Today the State of Maryland and the Maryland Department of Natural Resources are happy to report that the Eastern Bay on Maryland's Eastern Shore is no longer on the States endangered list.

The once threatened area is now producing Oysters as it did in the 1950's when Trains transported Oysters by the box car loads from Kent Narrows to Philadelphia because they were to numerous for the local shucking houses. Dump truck loads of Oyster shells are being replanted every week and local Waterman are breathing a sigh of relief as they head to work every day. Water clarity now rivals Florida and tourists and fisherman can see teeming shoals of fish over the many Oyster Bars. The local hotels and charter boats are now helping tourists see what a lot of planning and hard work can accomplish in just a short time. Business is booming and the area has become a pilgrimage for many environmental tourists in hopes that they can learn something to take home and make their local waterways a place of enjoyment for generations to come.

• "Eastern Bay Oysters are Making a Splash"

Due to careful scientific management, there are more oysters in recorded history in Eastern Bay than ever before. Through judicious and aggressive funding efforts from MD DNR, environmental NGOs, and their federal partners, there are more fully restored oyster sanctuaries, the aquaculture industry has taken off, and the public fishery has a sustainable and growing harvest.

• "The Remarkable Oysters of Eastern Bay"

The Eastern Bay Oyster Coalition united and "closed the gap between both sides of the bivalve" by putting differences aside to regenerate the oyster population in Eastern Bay through educational and economic development opportunities within the region.

- "Good planning and Mother Nature returns Eastern Bay to thriving"
- "Localized oyster harvest dominated by spat from Eastern Bay is setting records not seen since the fifties"

Restoration efforts by oyster stakeholders and the public continue to see significant improvements to Eastern Bay oyster habitat, water quality, and SAV growth benefiting the fishing and tourism industries.

Additional Details and Thoughts from OCW Members About What a Successful Future for Eastern Bay Could Look Like in 2033:

- Plantings are abundant, oysters are abundant, many sites are planted
- Broodstock develops and the oysters grow
- No major die-offs occur
- Spat set increases and are maintained, which suggest that all efforts have resulted in successful restoration of Eastern Bay
- Plenty of oysters in Eastern Bay including restored oyster bars, more oysters available for the public fishery, and successful oyster aquaculture
- The ability to still make a living off oystering, plenty of open oyster bars, successful program for ongoing oyster protection and planting
- A lot of oysters

C. Vision Themes

Workgroup Members Were Asked to Identify Key Themes That Summarize Their Desired Future for Eastern Bay. Proposed Vision Themes Encompassed Three Major Themes:

- 1. A healthy ecosystem
- 2. Improved oyster production and habitat
- 3. Engaged and supportive stakeholders, culture, and economy

Overarching Topic	Themes Proposed by OCW Members	
1. Ecosystem Health	Ecosystem resilience	
	A healthy ecosystem	
	Water quality improvement	

	Sustainability			
	 Increased oysters, crabs, and rockfish 			
2. Improved Oyster Production	Enhancing spat set			
and Habitat	Expansion of productive aquaculture bottom			
	Seed areas created for public fishery replenishment			
	Oyster sanctuaries replenished and maintained – both			
	reproduction and spat sets throughout Eastern Bay			
	Alternative substrates used to boost natural production			
	Increase oyster habitat and harvest			
	Focus on spat-on-shell			
	Bring shells to surface by bagless dredging			
	Less bureaucracy to obtain oyster leases			
3. Engaged and Supportive	Collaboration, synergy, collective will			
Stakeholders, Culture,	Cooperation, coordination			
Economy	• Equitable			
	Holistic			
	Expand public awareness			
	Science-based management			
	Local community buys into the plan and helps foster awareness			
	• Economic benefits (restaurants thriving and ecotourism boat			
	trips running)			
	 Education – both passive (regional interpretive signage) and active (at CBEC and other NGOs) 			

VI. Additional Information

Additional Information That Workgroup Members Thought Would Be Helpful at Workgroup Meetings and in Preparing to Participate in the Workgroup. These are Listed in Order of Rank.

Торіс	Average Rating (out of 5)
Information about oyster restoration activities and outcomes	4.5
Current status and trends of oyster populations, harvest, and economic value of Eastern Bay- wide oyster fishery	4.4
Briefing on historic, current, and projected commercial harvesting from the oyster fishery and aquaculture in Eastern Bay	4.2
Briefing on State regulation programs related to the oyster fishery	3.9
Briefing and information on the use of decision-support tools (modeling)	3.9
Briefing and information on climate changes and rising sea levels impacts on oyster habitat and production	3.6
Scientific information about oysters	3.6

Other Information Requested:

- Oyster Futures model applied to Eastern Bay
- MDNR Fall survey data from the past 10 years
- Shell charts from Seed Repletion program
- Historical data on license holders for oysters, clams, crabs, and rockfish
- Historical data on yearly harvesting
- Historical data on water quality for the area under consideration
- Models that have worked in other areas of the Bay
- Any website links from other states/NGOs working through the same issues or questions